
CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
13151 E. Industrial Dr., Parlier, CA 93648 

559-896-1085 | www.mosquitobuzz.net

Board of Trustees Meeting
Monday, December 16, 2024

1:00PM 

AGENDA 

1. Roll Call:

2. Introduction of Visitors:
The public may address the Board on each agenda item during the consideration of that item.

3. Public Comments:
This is an opportunity for public comment on non-agenda items. The President reserves the right
to limit the duration of each speaker to five (5) minutes. It is customary for the Board not to
answer any questions impromptu.

4. Items of General Consent:
The following items are routine in nature and may be approved by one blanket motion upon
unanimous consent. The President or any member of the Board of Trustees may request an item
be pulled from Items of General Consent for a separate discussion.

A. Approval of November Minutes
B. Approval of November Special Meeting Minutes
C. Approval of November Payroll
D. Approval of November Bills

5. Presentation of the 2023-2024 Audit Report:
The firm of Jaribu W. Nelson, CPA will present the audit report of financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.

1

http://www.mosquitobuzz.net/


 
 

6. Warrant to Inspect and Abate: 
The Board will be asked to approve a request to the Fresno County Superior Court for an area-
wide Warrant to Inspect and Abate for use in 2025. 
 
 

7. Ethics and Supervisor Training Requirements: 
The Board will review training required to comply with AB 1234 and AB 1825 for Board 
members. 
 
 

8. Resolution 06-2024 Termination of CCVCJPA: 
The Board will consider Resolution 06-2024, the dissolution of the Central California Vector 
Control Joint Powers Agency (CCVCJPA). 
 
 

9. Vehicle Transmission Replacement: 
The Board will consider approving the purchase and installation of a new transmission for a 
district 2005 Jeep Wrangler Sport. 
 

 
10. Change January and February Meeting Dates: 

The Board will be asked to cancel the regular January 20, 2025, and February 17, 2025 meetings, 
which are District holidays, and schedule special meetings of the Board. 
 
 

11. Meeting Reports: 
Reports on District participation at authorized meetings will be given by those who attended. 
 

 
12. Board General Discussion: 

This is an opportunity for Board Members to ask questions for clarification, provide information 
to staff, request staff to report back on a matter, or direct staff to place a matter on a subsequent 
agenda. 

 
 

13. Staff Reports: 
This is an opportunity for staff to report on District activities. 

 
 

14. Adjournment: 

22



 Minutes of the Board of Trustees of the 
 Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District 
  November 18, 2024 
 
The regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District was 
held at the District Office, in Parlier at l:00 PM on November 18, 2024. 
 
1. Roll Call:   

 
  Trustees Present: 

Tokuo Fukuda    Kingsburg 
 Mary Anne Hill County of Fresno 
 Abe Isaak Reedley 
 Charles Lockhart Orange Cove 
 Michelle Lopez Parlier    
 Ward Scheitrum Fresno 
 Charles Smith Selma    
 Karen Steinhauer Sanger     
 Bruce Taylor County of Fresno 
 Jennifer Willems Clovis - left the meeting at 1:35pm – returned 2:06pm 
 
 Trustees Absent: 
 Leonard Hammer Fowler 
   
 Others Present: 
 Jodi Holeman District Manager 
 Karan Cox Office Administrator 
     
   
 2. President Lockhart called the regular meeting to order concurrently at 1:00 PM:  
 
 
 3. Public Comments:  None. 
 
 
 4. Items of General Consent: The following items are routine in nature and may be approved 

by one blanket motion upon unanimous consent.  The President or any member of the Board 
of Trustees may request an item be pulled from Items of General Consent for a separate 
discussion. 

 
A.  Approval of October Minutes 
B.  Approval of October Payroll 
C.  Approval of October Bills 
D.  Quarterly Investment Report 

 
 

 

33



C.M.A.D. ----------Minutes, November 18, 2024                                            - 2 – 
 
 
A motion was made by Trustee Fukuda, seconded by Trustee Lopez, and passed by 
unanimous vote to approve the items of General Consent. 
 

   
5. Purchase of New ATV and Trailer:  A motion was made by Trustee Scheitrum, seconded 

by Trustee Fukuda, and passed by unanimous vote to approve the purchase of a new ATV at 
a cost of $10,679.42 from Tulare Polaris and a new trailer at a cost of $2,449.70 from 
Carson Trailer. 

  
 
6. Amendment to the Professional Development Calendar:  A motion was made by Trustee 

Steinhauer, seconded by Trustee Lopez and passed by unanimous vote to approve an 
amendment to the 2024 / 2025 Professional Development Calendar. 

 
  

7. District Legal Counsel:  The Board discussed the retirement of the District’s current legal 
counsel.  A motion was made by Trustee Taylor, seconded by Trustee Isaak and passed by 
unanimous vote to continue to receive legal services from the firm Lozano Smith. 

 
 
8. Central Valley Local Chapter of the CSDA Board Member:  A motion was made by 

Trustee Fukuda, seconded by Trustee Hill, and passed by unanimous vote to authorize the 
District Manager to serve as a board member on the Central Valley Local Chapter of the 
California Special District Association.  

 
 
9. Authorization for the Expenditure of Funds:  Trustee Willems left the meeting.  A 

motion was made by Trustee Lopez, seconded by Trustee Isaak and passed by a vote of 8 – 
1 – 2 (Taylor opposed, Hammer and Willems absent) to approve the use of district funds to 
cover the transfer fees required if a job offer is extended to an H-1B visa holder for a district 
position. 

 
 
10. Meeting Reports: Trustee Willems returned to the meeting. Manager Holeman gave an oral 

report on her attendance at the Northwest Mosquito Control Association Annual meeting in 
Leavenworth, WA, on October 22 – 24, 2024. 

  
 Office Administrator Cox gave an oral report on her attendance at the CalPERS Educational 

Forum in San Diego, California, on October 28 – 30, 2024. 
  
 Trustee Taylor gave an oral report on his attendance at the VCJPA Board of Directors 

quarterly meeting in Sacramento, California, on November 7, 2024. 
 
 
 

44



C.M.A.D. ----------Minutes, November 18, 2024                                            - 3 – 
  
 
 Director of Science and Outreach Ramirez submitted a written report, and Manager 

Holeman gave an oral report on their attendance at Entomology 2024, the annual meeting of 
the Entomological Society of America in Phoenix, Arizona, on November 10 – 13, 2024.     

 
  
11. Board General Discussion:  Trustee Smith informed the Board that he had attended an 

AMCA webinar on biting midges and thought they did a very good job. 
 
 
12. Staff Reports: Manager Holeman informed the Board that William Wilder, a previous City 

of Fresno trustee, had recently passed away. 
 
 
13. Adjournment:  The meeting ended at 2:22 PM.  The next Board meeting will be held on 

Monday, December 16, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
           
             Attested  
               Member, Board of Trustees 

55



Minutes of the Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the 
Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District 

 November 18, 2024 

The special meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District was 
held at the District Office, in Parlier at l:00 PM on November 18, 2024. 

1. Roll Call:

Trustees Present:
Tokuo Fukuda Kingsburg 
Mary Anne Hill County of Fresno 
Abe Isaak Reedley 
Charles Lockhart Orange Cove 
Michelle Lopez Parlier  
Ward Scheitrum Fresno 
Charles Smith Selma  
Karen Steinhauer Sanger  
Bruce Taylor County of Fresno 
Jennifer Willems Clovis - left the meeting at 1:35pm – returned 2:06pm 

Trustees Absent:
Leonard Hammer Fowler 

Others Present:
Jodi Holeman District Manager 
Karan Cox Office Administrator 

2. President Lockhart called the special meeting to order at 1:00 PM*:

3. Change Order to Contract with WestTech Systems, LLC:  A motion was made by
Trustee Isaak, seconded by Trustee Smith and passed by unanimous vote to approve the
change order to Project 23100 CMAD Clovis with WestTech Systems, LLC in the amount
of $60,629.47as presented.

4. Adjournment:  The  special  meeting ended at 2:22 PM.  The next Board meeting will be
held on Monday, December 16, 2024.

*The special meeting was called to order concurrently with the regular meeting.

       Attested  
      Member, Board of Trustees 

66



Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District

Payroll Expenses

November 2024

Gross Net 

Check # Pay Pay Payee Description

31351 $3,280.21 $2,227.33 Amy Garcia Full-Time Employee

31352 $3,743.96 $2,483.25 Brittany Deegan Full-Time Employee

31353 $3,759.13 $2,680.12 Chris Monis Full-Time Employee

31354 $3,946.29 $1,625.35 Derek Hill Full-Time Employee

31355 $3,622.50 $2,380.92 Devon Cornel Full-Time Employee

31356 $3,060.54 $2,213.44 Donald McNiel Full-Time Employee

31357 $2,552.00 $1,749.36 Eric Ferguson Seasonal Employee

31358 $3,622.50 $2,563.93 Gha Vang Full-Time Employee

31359 $6,041.67 $3,864.07 Jodi Holeman Full-Time Employee

31360 $3,967.00 $2,342.36 Jose Moreno Full-Time Employee

31361 $3,240.54 $2,180.86 Jovana Benavides Full-Time Employee

31362 $4,282.75 $2,969.99 Karan Cox Full-Time Employee

31363 $3,359.83 $2,289.17 Katherine Brisco Full-Time Employee

31364 $4,901.38 $3,036.84 Katherine Ramirez Full-Time Employee

31365 $2,123.50 $1,679.83 Michael Scotty Dunn Seasonal Employee

31387 $3,280.21 $2,227.31 Amy Garcia Full-Time Employee

31388 $3,743.96 $2,483.25 Brittany Deegan Full-Time Employee

31389 $3,759.13 $2,681.49 Chris Monis Full-Time Employee

31390 $3,946.29 $1,625.33 Derek Hill Full-Time Employee

31391 $3,622.50 $2,380.94 Devon Cornel Full-Time Employee

31392 $3,060.54 $2,213.44 Donald McNiel Full-Time Employee

31393 $1,160.00 $815.13 Eric Ferguson Seasonal Employee

31394 $3,622.50 $2,563.95 Gha Vang Full-Time Employee

31395 $6,041.67 $3,864.53 Jodi Holeman Full-Time Employee

31396 $3,967.00 $2,344.21 Jose Moreno Full-Time Employee

31397 $3,240.54 $2,180.85 Jovana Benavides Full-Time Employee

31398 $4,282.75 $2,969.98 Karan Cox Full-Time Employee

31399 $3,359.83 $2,289.16 Katherine Brisco Full-Time Employee

31400 $4,901.38 $3,036.85 Katherine Ramirez Full-Time Employee

31401 $992.00 $837.38 Michael Scotty Dunn Seasonal Employee

Total $108,484.10 $70,800.62

77



Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District

Payroll Expenses

November 2024

Check # Amount Payee Description

31366 $2,248.08 EDD State Income Tax

31367 $10,362.38 CMAD Federal, Social Security, Medicare

31368 $4,044.94 CalPERS Retirement - Employee portion

31369 $2,250.00 Mission Square 457K Retirement

31370 $200.00 Valley First Credit Union Credit Union 

31373 $71.68 Aflac Disability Insurance

31402 $2,147.87 EDD State Income Tax

31403 $9,907.68 CMAD Federal, Social Security, Medicare

31404 $3,849.39 CalPERS Retirement - Employee portion

31405 $2,250.00 Mission Square 457K Retirement

31406 $200.00 Valley First Credit Union Credit Union 

31419 $151.46 Mutual of Omaha Life Insurance - Employee portion

Total Deductions $37,683.48

Total Net Pay $70,800.62

Total Gross Pay $108,484.10

Employee Deductions and Liabilities

88



Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District

Monthly Expenditures

Check # Amount Payee Description

31367 $4,253.38 CMAD Social Security & Medicare - District portion

31368 $5,048.81 CalPERS Retirement - District portion

31371 $593.52 Bruce Taylor Travel expenses - MVCAC Planning Meeting

31372 $322.50 Jodi Holeman Travel expenses - MVCAC Planning Meeting

31374 $1,032.48 AT&T Telephone / Internet - Parlier facility

31375 $9,338.00 California Special Districts Assoc. Annual membership

31376 $200.00 Cashier - Dept of Pesticide Reg Drone license renewal 

31377 $389.50 Matson Alarm Co., Inc. Alarm systems - various location

31378 $1,927.41 City of Parlier Water sewer disposal

31379 $857.46 PG&E Electric charges - Clovis facility

31380 $15.23 PG&E Electric charges - Selma facility

31381 $90.66 PG&E Gas & electric charges - Selma facility

31382 $146.50 Karan Cox Travel expenses - CalPERS Educational Forum

31383 $168.31 Katherine Ramirez Travel expenses - ESA Annual Conference

31384 $2,403.48 Verizon Connect Vehicle GPS tracking & cameras

31385 $77,587.47 Westech Systems, LLC Solar project - Clovis facility

31403 $4,056.68 CMAD Social Security & Medicare - District portion

31404 $4,850.21 CalPERS Retirement - District portion

31407 $40.47 AT&T 800 number

31408 $662.62 AT&T Telephone / Internet - Clovis facility

31409 $597.28 Bruce Taylor Travel expenses - VCJPA Board of Directors 

31410 $43.95 DoorKing, Inc. Monthly gate service

31411 $29.11 Mid-Valley Disposal Disposal - Selma

31412 $1,948.55 PG&E Electric charges - Parlier facility

31413 $78.44 Republic Services Disposal - Clovis

31414 $15,093.20 SDRMA Health, dental and vision premium

31415 $207.86 SoCal Gas Gas charges - Parlier facility

31416 $14.79 SoCal Gas Gas charges - Caruthers facility

31417 $2,403.48 Verizon Connect Vehicle GPS tracking & cameras

31418 $1,901.70 Verizon Wireless Cell phones & tablets

31419 $63.71 Mutual of Omaha Life insurance - District portion

31420 $600.00 All-Pro Janitorial Services Janitorial Services - October & November

31421 $202.71 Battery Systems, Inc. Batteries

31422 $136.25 Bellwether, Inc. IT services

31423 $82.43 Goodsuite Copier maintenance

31424 $6,750.00 Jaribu Nelson CPA 2023 - 2024 Audit

31425 $219.82 Linde Gas & Equipment, Inc. Dry Ice

31426 $112.50 Lozano Smith Legal fees

31427 $679.44 Mission Uniform Service Uniforms & safety

31428 $14.46 Napa Repair parts

31429 $159.21 Nelson's Ace Hardware & Lumber Building & ground supplies

BMO Checks

99



Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District

Monthly Expenditures

Check # Amount Payee Description

31430 $790.87 O'Reilly Auto Parts Repair parts

31431 $113.50 Ono's Auto Repair Smog checks

31432 $26.15 PBM Supply & Mfg., Inc. Field Equipment

31433 $106.04 City of Sanger Water sewer disposal

31434 $4,152.56 U.S. Bank Corporate Payment Credit card statement - see transaction list

31435 $886.36 Vector Control JPA Drone insurance coverage

31436 $2,094.08 Wex Bank - Valero Fuel

Total $153,493.14

Check # Amount Payee Description

306561 $159,838.61 Consolidated Mosquito Transfer funds to checking

306562 $84,797.08 Consolidated Mosquito Transfer funds to checking

309477 $17,341.55 Consolidated Mosquito Transfer funds to checking

$261,977.24

November 2024 Salaries & Wages $108,484.10

November 2024 Maintenance & Operations $153,493.14

Total November 2024 Expenditures $261,977.24

County of Fresno Checks

Summary of November Expenses

1010



Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District

Monthly Expenditures

ACCOUNT BUDGET SPENT BALANCE

NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME FY 2024/2025 TO DATE NOV 30, 2024

SALARIES, WAGES & EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  

6101-01 Salaried Wages $1,340,000.00 $512,893.04 $827,106.96

6101-06 Hourly Wages & Extra Help $750,000.00 $336,861.54 $413,138.46

6101-02 FICA Employers Contribution $162,000.00 $65,091.80 $96,908.20

6101-03 Unemployment Insurance $24,000.00 $1,443.25 $22,556.75

6101-04 Retirement District's Payment $150,000.00 $57,787.18 $92,212.82

6101-08 CalPERS UAL Payment $26,000.00 $7,635.00 $18,365.00

6101-05 Group Health Insurance $300,000.00 $97,118.71 $202,881.29

6101-07 Pre-Employment & Misc. Expenses $9,000.00 $120.00 $8,880.00

TOTALS $2,761,000.00 $1,078,950.52 $1,682,049.48

OPERATING & MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE

6102-01 Insecticides & Herbicides $500,000.00 $260,904.66 $239,095.34

6102-02 Power Spray & Field Equipment $30,000.00 $5,704.54 $24,295.46

6102-03 Misc Operating Supplies & Expense $7,000.00 $1,146.27 $5,853.73

6102-04 Fish Program $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00

6102-05 Building & Ground Maintenance $30,000.00 $7,823.68 $22,176.32

6102-06 Airplane Expense $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00

TOTALS $578,000.00 $275,579.15 $302,420.85

MOTOR VEHICLE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE

6103-01 Fuel & Lubricants $180,000.00 $69,179.12 $110,820.88

6103-02 Repairs & Shop Tools $45,000.00 $13,807.18 $31,192.82

6103-03 Tires & Batteries $15,000.00 $1,516.29 $13,483.71

6103-04 Fleet Lease $120,000.00 $0.00 $120,000.00

TOTALS $360,000.00 $84,502.59 $275,497.41

UTILITIES & COMMUNICATIONS

6104-01 Heat, Light & Power $50,000.00 $22,244.68 $27,755.32

6104-04 Water Sewer & Disposal $19,000.00 $8,481.86 $10,518.14

6105-01 Telephone & Internet $25,000.00 $8,668.52 $16,331.48

6105-02 Cellular Phones & Tablets $30,000.00 $12,199.61 $17,800.39

TOTALS $124,000.00 $51,594.67 $72,405.33

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE

6106-02 Postage, Printing & Stationery $6,000.00 $427.66 $5,572.34

6106-04 Repairs & Maintenance $6,000.00 $627.52 $5,372.48

6106-05 Misc Office Supplies $14,000.00 $2,793.30 $11,206.70

6106-06 Office Equipment & Furniture $10,000.00 $1,637.54 $8,362.46

TOTALS $36,000.00 $5,486.02 $30,513.98

INSURANCE

6107-01 Liability, Property & Auto $125,000.00 $113,078.36 $11,921.64

6107-02 Workers Compensation $80,000.00 $73,834.00 $6,166.00

TOTALS $205,000.00 $186,912.36 $18,087.64

1111



Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District

Monthly Expenditures

ACCOUNT BUDGET SPENT BALANCE

NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME FY 2024/2025 TO DATE NOV 30, 2024

TRAVEL & SUBSISTENCE EXPENSE

6108-01 Meetings & Travel Allowance $75,000.00 $13,350.68 $61,649.32

6108-02 Trustee Allowance $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00

6108-03 Meal Allowance $5,000.00 $256.42 $4,743.58

TOTALS $81,000.00 $13,607.10 $67,392.90

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURES

6109-01 Rent: Land, Buildings and Equipment $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00

6109-02 Dues, Subscriptions and Fees $30,000.00 $24,983.06 $5,016.94

6109-03 Education & Publicity $35,000.00 $9,725.59 $25,274.41

6109-04 Accounting $15,000.00 $13,500.00 $1,500.00

6109-05 Legal $12,000.00 $1,417.50 $10,582.50

6109-06 County Service Charge $65,000.00 $0.00 $65,000.00

6109-07 Uniforms, Safety Apparel & Equipment $25,000.00 $8,796.86 $16,203.14

6109-08 Surveillance & Research $70,000.00 $37,446.86 $32,553.14

6109-09 Other Miscellaneous Expenditures $18,000.00 $1,285.42 $16,714.58

6109-10 GIS & GPS $72,000.00 $32,858.72 $39,141.28

TOTALS $344,000.00 $130,014.01 $213,985.99

TOTAL OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURES $4,489,000.00 $1,826,646.42 $2,662,353.58

CAPITAL OUTLAY

6110-01 Office & Lab Furniture & Equipment $25,000.00 $8,454.92 $16,545.08

6110-02 Auto Equipment $350,000.00 $262,148.28 $87,851.72

6110-03 Shop Equipment $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00

6110-04 Field Equipment $150,000.00 $9,153.90 $140,846.10

6110-05 Building & Ground Improvement $700,000.00 $219,374.97 $480,625.03

6110-06 Loan & Lease Purchase Payments $290,000.00 $0.00 $290,000.00

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY EXPENDITURES $1,530,000.00 $499,132.07 $1,030,867.93

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $6,019,000.00 $2,325,778.49 $3,693,221.51

Special Projects Reserve $150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00

MVCAC SSJVR Mutual Aid Reserve $100,000.00 $0.00 $100,000.00

Contingency Reserve $1,000,000.00 $0.00 $1,000,000.00

Building Reserve $2,000,000.00 $0.00 $2,000,000.00

Equipment Reserve $500,000.00 $0.00 $500,000.00

General Reserve $3,208,000.00 $0.00 $3,208,000.00

TOTAL RESERVES $6,958,000.00 $0.00 $6,958,000.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND RESERVES $12,977,000.00 $2,325,778.49 $10,651,221.51

1212



Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District

Monthly Expenditures

FRESNO COUNTY ACCOUNT- BANK OF THE WEST 

CASH ON HAND, OCTOBER 31, 2024 $8,111,552.31

PROPERTY TAXES WITHHELD BY FRS COUNTY $0.00

NOVEMBER REVENUE $5,082.48

NOVEMBER INTEREST $0.00

TAXES - FRESNO COUNTY / KINGS COUNTY $4,883.92

TOTAL REVENUE FOR NOVEMBER $9,966.40

SUB-TOTAL $8,121,518.71

COUNTY ADMIN COST FOR FY WITHHELD BY COUNTY $0.00

MONEY TRANSFERRED TO CHECKING ($261,977.24)

CASH ON HAND, NOVEMBER 30, 2024 $7,859,541.47

YEARLY REVENUE THROUGH 10-31-24 $116,762.48

NOVEMBER REVENUE $9,966.40

YEARLY REVENUE THROUGH 11-30-24 $126,728.88

CMAD CHECKING ACCOUNT - BANK OF THE WEST 

CASH ON HAND, OCTOBER 31, 2024 $135,000.00

MONEY TRANSFERRED FROM FRS CO ACCT $261,977.24

NOVEMBER EXPENDITURES ($261,977.24)

CASH ON HAND, NOVEMBER 30, 2024 $135,000.00

SALE OF REEDLEY DEPOT $185,000.00

DOWN PAYMENT ($25,000.00)

MONTHLY PAYMENTS PAID TO DATE ($46,438.00)

BALANCE DUE AS OF NOVEMBER 30, 2024 $113,562.00

1313



10101010101010101010
10110001010110111011
10100011000010111000
10011101010100001111
11011100001001010110
11010110110001001001
10100001000101101000
10010001110100101011
11000100001011010010
11010010010011110101
10000000101001010000
10101000000001110011
10000010000000110000
10100000001110000111
10001101111101010000
10000111000001110111
10110001011100100000
11000010010111111101
11001011110010111010
11111111111111111111

CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO
ATTN KARAN COX
13151 E. INDUSTRIAL DR.
PARLIER  CA   93648-9661

U.S. BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS
P.O. BOX 790428
ST. LOUIS, MO 63179-0428

800-344-5696

     $7,327.00 CR

11-21 11-21 74798264326432600012608 PAYMENT-THANK YOU Q        7,327.00 PY

        $0.00     $1,481.87         $0.00     $1,481.87

11-11 11-09 24035964315090376198997 AMERICAN AIR0010261148743 FORT WORTH TX          40.00
RAMIREZ KATHERINE 11-09-24
EBC AA Y FEE

11-15 11-14 24036294319712821328351 UBER   *TRIP HELP.UBER.COM CA          31.96

P.O. BOX 6343
FARGO ND  58125-6343

12-06-2024
    $4,152.56
    $4,152.56

PREVIOUS BALANCE     7,327.00
PURCHASES &
OTHER CHARGES      5,307.09

CASH ADVANCES          .00

12/06/24       .00 CASH ADVANCE FEES          .00
LATE PAYMENT
CHARGES          .00

CREDITS     1,154.53

U.S. Bank National Association PAYMENTS     7,327.00

C/O U.S. Bancorp Purchasing Card Program
P.O. Box 6335

Fargo, ND 58125-6335

Page 1 of 3

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

TOTAL CORPORATE ACTIVITYCONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO 

Post Tran
Date Date Reference Number

Transaction Description Amount

CREDITS PURCHASES CASH ADV TOTAL ACTIVITYKATHERINE RAMIREZ

Post Tran
Date Date Reference Number Transaction Description Amount

ACCOUNT NUMBER
STATEMENT DATE
AMOUNT DUE
NEW BALANCE

ACCOUNT NUMBER

SEND BILLING INQUIRIES TO:

$

CORPORATE ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Please tear payment coupon at perforation.

STATEMENT DATE DISPUTED AMOUNT

PAYMENT DUE ON RECEIPT

AMOUNT ENCLOSED

ACCOUNT SUMMARY

ACCOUNT BALANCE     4,152.56

CUSTOMER SERVICE CALL

AMOUNT DUE

  4,152.56

Purchases Cash Late
Previous And Other Cash Advance Payment New
Balance + Charges + Advances + Fees + Charges - Credits - Payments = Balance

     $7,327.00 $5,307.09     $0.00     $.00     $0.00  $1,154.53 $7,327.00       $4,152.56

CONSOLIDATED MOSQUIT

Company Total

CORPORATE ACCOUNT SUMMARY

NEW ACTIVITY

Please make check payable to"U.S. Bank"

ATAFATFDTDTAAATAFFATAFDAAFDTTTTDADTTAAAFFDTFAFFTAFTTFDAADDFFTTDAA
000001071 01  SP         106481195163411 S   

1414



10101010101010101010
10110001010111111011
10100011000010111000
10011101010100011111
11011100001001001010
11010111000000100101
10100001000101001100
10010001110000001011
11000100001111110100
11010010010011011101
10000000101110100000
10101000001010101011
10000011111011010100
10100110111001110011
10001111000011110000
10010101010100000101
10111000111111100000
11011100110011001101
11001010110010111010
11111111111111111111

11-15 11-13 24717054319873192337274 AMERICAN AI 0014447404946 800-433-7300 TX          35.00
RAMIREZ/KATHERI 0- 0- 0

11-18 11-14 24943004320093355229360 HYATT REGENCY PHOENIX PHOENIX AZ       1,374.91
42748619 ARRIVAL: 11-09-24

        $0.00       $213.88         $0.00       $213.88

11-11 11-07 24943014313010205685276 THE HOME DEPOT #0664 CLOVIS CA          37.64
11-14 11-12 24943014318010206711001 THE HOME DEPOT #0664 CLOVIS CA          94.21
11-20 11-18 24122594324030017326779 SENOR BEEF INC PARLIER CA          82.03

      $825.00       $146.21         $0.00       $678.79 CR

11-13 11-12 24137464318001543980931 USPS PO 0558560648 PARLIER CA          23.31
11-14 11-12 24011344318000071235473 AMCA* CA HTTPSWWW.MOSQ CA         825.00 CR
11-20 11-18 24427334324710038660610 SAVEMART #654 KINGS KINGSBURG CA          33.46
11-27 11-26 24137464332001847119196 USPS PO 0558560648 PARLIER CA          89.44

        $0.00       $340.28         $0.00       $340.28

12-04 12-03 24231684339170763291460 HARBOR FREIGHT TOOLS3551 SANGER CA         329.39
12-06 12-05 24011344341000000224151 AMAZON MARK* ZL5F67QY1 HTTPSAMAZON.C WA          10.89

      $329.53     $3,124.85         $0.00     $2,795.32

11-08 11-06 74178784312105918944448 SHERATON PUERTO RICO 787-993-3500         329.53 CR
M31282 ARRIVAL: 11-06-24

11-11 11-09 24717054315873150447812 DELTA AIR   BAGGAGE FEE 800-2211212 MO          35.00
HOLEMAN/JODI 0- 0- 0

11-14 11-14 24116414319716723607074 WAYMO 844-261-3753 CA          27.29
11-15 11-13 24692164319102210555618 RENAISSANCE HOTEL PHOE PHOENIX AZ       1,076.20

2717 ARRIVAL: 11-09-24

Page 2 of 3

Post Tran
Date Date Reference Number Transaction Description Amount

CREDITS PURCHASES CASH ADV TOTAL ACTIVITYDEVON CORNEL

Post Tran
Date Date Reference Number Transaction Description Amount

CREDITS PURCHASES CASH ADV TOTAL ACTIVITYKARAN COX

Post Tran
Date Date Reference Number Transaction Description Amount

CREDITS PURCHASES CASH ADV TOTAL ACTIVITYJOSE MORENO

Post Tran
Date Date Reference Number Transaction Description Amount

CREDITS PURCHASES CASH ADV TOTAL ACTIVITYJODI HOLEMAN

Post Tran
Date Date Reference Number Transaction Description Amount

Company Name: CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO

Corporate Account Number: 

Statement Date: 12-06-2024

NEW ACTIVITY

1515



10101010101010101010
10110001010000111011
10100011000010111000
10011101010110101111
11011100001001000010
11010111010001001001
10100001000100010100
10010001110101110111
11000100001111110110
11010010011100000101
10000000110101001000
10101001011011011011
10000011011000101100
10100111100100101111
10001011110111001000
10010000111111000011
10101011011111100000
11001100010110010101
11001010110110000010
11111111111111111111

11-15 11-13 24717054319873192387576 AMERICAN AI 0010261351268 PHOENIX AZ          40.00
HOLEMAN/JODI 0- 0- 0

11-20 11-19 24692164324106841378558 IN *ALLWEBCO, INC. 251-6544124 AL         215.40
11-25 11-25 24204294330000600951044 MSFT * E0700ULO6Z 800-6427676 WA          82.50
11-25 11-24 24692164329100945357621 AMZN MKTP US*B78YW7UJ3 AMZN.COM/BILL WA          44.46
11-25 11-24 24692164330101502639309 AMAZON MKTPL*3Q9H918T3 AMZN.COM/BILL WA         244.99
11-25 11-24 24692164330101505498851 AMAZON MKTPL*EG7ZK7IF3 AMZN.COM/BILL WA         235.76
11-27 11-26 24692164331102565172427 AMZN MKTP US*SU0VK38N3 AMZN.COM/BILL WA          86.02
11-27 11-26 24692164331103133016807 AMZN MKTP US*WT93W3V13 AMZN.COM/BILL WA          98.02
11-29 11-28 24011344333000083834595 ZOOM.US 888-799-9666 WWW.ZOOM.US CA         159.90
12-02 11-30 24011344335000018783972 JOINHOMEBASE.COM HTTPSJOINHOME CA         240.00
12-04 12-02 24943004338104733012939 HOLIDAY INN-BAYSIDE SAN DIEGO CA         179.77

12534111 ARRIVAL: 12-01-24
12-06 12-04 24943004340105992237931 HOLIDAY INN-BAYSIDE 6192243621 CA         359.54

3390835176192243621 ARRIVAL: 12-02-24

Department: 00000 Total:      $4,152.56
Division: 00000 Total:      $4,152.56

Page 3 of 3

Post Tran
Date Date Reference Number Transaction Description Amount

Company Name: CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO

Corporate Account Number: 

Statement Date: 12-06-2024

NEW ACTIVITY

1616



CMAD Purchase Purpose

Name Date Reference Number Merchant Name Amount Item Description Account #

K. Ramirez 2024/11/09 24035964315090376198997 AMERICAN AIR00102611 $40.00 Baggage fee 6108-01 ESA Annual Conference

K. Ramirez 2024/11/13 24717054319873192337274 AMERICAN AI 001444740 $35.00 Baggage fee 6108-01 ESA Annual Conference

K. Ramirez 2024/11/14 24943004320093355229360 Hyatt Regency Phoenix $1,374.91 Lodging 6108-01 ESA Annual Conference

K. Ramirez 2024/11/14 24036294319712821328351 UBER   *TRIP $31.96 Transportation 6108-01 ESA Annual Conference

D. Cornel 2024/11/07 24943014313010205685276 THE HOME DEPOT $37.64 flex rake, sand bag 6102-05 gardening tools & supplies

D. Cornel 2024/11/12 24943014318010206711001 THE HOME DEPOT $94.21 mail box, post, concrete mix 6102-05 replace Clovis mail box

D. Cornel 2024/11/18 24122594324030017326779 SENOR BEEF INC $82.03 lunch - Leading Edge 6108-03 drone training 

K. Cox 2024/11/12 24137464318001543980931 USPS PO 0558560648 $23.31 First-Class Lg Env 6106-02 mail Board packet

K.Cox 2024/11/12 24011344318000071235473 AMCA* CA ($825.00) Refund & re-register for meeting 6108-01 AMCA Annual Conference

K. Cox 2024/11/18 24427334324710038660610 SAVEMART #654 KINGS $33.46 pastries, plates & napkins, etc. 6108-03 Board meeting supplies

K. Cox 2024/11/26 24137464332001847119196 USPS PO 0558560648 $89.44 First-Class Lg Env Priority 6106-02 mail 2023 - 2024 audit

J. Moreno 2024/12/03 24231684339170763291460 Harbor Freight Tools $329.39 roller seat, pneumatic seat 6103-02 shop tools

J. Moreno 2024/12/05 24011344341000000224151 AMAZON MARK* ZL5F67 $10.89 Air filter - maruyama backpack 6102-02 Replace old filter

J. Holeman 2024/11/06 74178784312105918944448 Sheraton Puerto Rico ($329.53) 1st night lodging - AMCA (change) 6108-01 AMCA Annual Conference

J. Holeman 2024/11/09 24717054315873150447812 DELTA AIR $35.00 Baggage fee 6108-01 ESA Annual Conference

J. Holeman 2024/11/13 24692164319102210555618 Renaissance Hotel Phoenix $1,076.20 Lodging 6108-01 ESA Annual Conference

J. Holeman 2024/11/13 24717054319873192387576 AMERICAN AI 001026135 $40.00 Baggage fee 6108-01 ESA Annual Conference

J. Holeman 2024/11/14 24116414319716723607074 WAYMO $27.29 Transportation 6108-01 ESA Annual Conference

J. Holeman 2024/11/19 24692164324106841378558 IN *ALLWEBCO, INC. $215.40 ANNUAL SALE PACKAGE 6109-03 website hosting fee

J. Holeman 2024/11/24 24692164330101502639309 AMAZON MKTPL*3Q9H9 $244.99 Power Bank, electric cooler 6102-02 drone support accessories

J. Holeman 2024/11/24 24692164330101505498851 AMAZON MKTPL*EG7ZK $235.76 USB C Cable, waterproof mat 6102-02 drone support accessories

J. Holeman 2024/11/24 24692164329100945357621 AMZN MKTP US*B78YW $44.46 ATERET 5 Gallon Black Meta 6102-02 drone support accessories

J. Holeman 2024/11/25 24204294330000600951044 MSFT * E0700ULO6Z $82.50 Microsoft subscription 6106-05 mntly Microsoft subscription

J. Holeman 2024/11/26 24692164331103133016807 AMZN MKTP US*WT93W $98.02 SanDisk 1TB Extreme microS 6102-02 drone support accessories

J. Holeman 2024/11/26 24692164331102565172427 AMZN MKTP US*SU0VK $86.02 STEELWORKS BOLTMASTER 6102-02 drone support accessories

J. Holeman 2024/11/28 24011344333000083834595 ZOOM.US 888-799-9666 $159.90 Standard Pro Annual 6106-05 annual Zoom subscription

J. Holeman 2024/11/30 24011344335000018783972 JOINHOMEBASE.COM $240.00 Essentials 6106-05 time clock subscription

J. Holeman 2024/12/02 24943004338104733012939 HOLIDAY INN-BAYSIDE $179.77 Lodging 6108-01 MVCAC Planning Meeting

J. Holeman 2024/12/04 24943004340105992237931 HOLIDAY INN-BAYSIDE $359.54 Lodging 6108-01 MVCAC Planning Meeting

Total $4,152.56

6102-02 Spray & field equipment $720.14

6102-05 Building & ground $131.85

6103-02 Repairs & shop tools $329.39

6106-02 Postage $112.75

6106-05 Misc office expenses $482.40

6108-01 Meetings & travel $2,045.14

6108-03 Meals $115.49

6109-03 Education & publicity $215.40

Total $4,152.56

1717



Agenda Item 5: Presentation of the 2023-2024 Audit Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1818



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 2024 

1919



CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
JUNE 30, 2024 

 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

 PAGE 
 
INTRODUCTORY SECTION: 
 
 BOARD OF TRUSTEES .........................................................................................................................i 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ...................................................................................................... 1 
 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS .................................................................................... 3 
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 
 
 STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ....................................................................................................... 7 
 
 STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES ............................................................................................................. 8 
 
 BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUND .................................................................................. 9 
 
 RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET 
   TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ...................................................................................... 10 
 
 STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND 
   BALANCE – GOVERNMENTAL FUND ............................................................................................ 11 
 
 RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND  
   CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES ....................................... 12 
 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ............................................................................... 13 
 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: 
 
 BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE – GENERAL FUND ....................................................... 30 
 
 NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE ............................................................ 31 
 
 PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY ............................................................... 32 
 
 SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS – PENSION ................................................................................ 33 
 
OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT: 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS ...................................................... 37 

 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS ........................................................................ 39 
 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS ........................................................................... 40 
 
 

2020



CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
JUNE 30, 2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

List of Board of Trustees 
 

 
Charles Lockhart President 
 
Leonard Hammer Vice President/Secretary 
 
Jennifer Willems  Member 
 
Ward Scheitrum Member 
 
Tokuo Fukuda Member 
 
Michelle Lopez Member 
 
Abe Isaak Member 
 
Karen Steinhauer Member 
 
Charles Smith Member 
 
Mary Anne Hill Member 
 
Bruce Taylor Member 

 
 

2121



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY. 
 

 

2222



 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  
Board of Trustees of the  
Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District 
Parlier, California 
 
Opinions 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and the General Fund of 
the Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District (the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities and the General Fund of the District as of June 30, 2024, and 
the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  

Basis for Opinions 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the District, 
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to 
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions.  

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information 
that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

2323



• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 
raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period 
of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that 
we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information  
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 3 – 6, the budgetary comparison schedule on page 30, the proportionate 
share of net pension liability on page 32, and the schedule of contributions for pension on page 33 be presented 
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We 
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information  
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements.  The introductory section is presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.  

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 20, 2024, 
on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of 
that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

 
Clovis, California 
November 20, 2024 

 

2424



As management of the Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District (the District), we offer readers of this 
section of the annual report on audited financial statements (audit report) a narrative overview and 
analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, from 
management’s perspective. Please read and consider the information represented here in conjunction 
with the financial statements as a whole. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
Assets of the District (total net position) exceeded its liabilities by $14,896,852. The total net position at 
the beginning of the fiscal year was $13,411,584. There was a change in net position of $1,485,268 to 
account for the end of year net position of $14,896,852. Of this amount, there is an unrestricted net 
position of $10,194,259, which may be used to meet the District’s ongoing obligations. 
 
The General Fund of the District showed total revenues of $5,515,921 and total expenditures of 
$4,983,150. The General Fund balance at the beginning of the year was $9,266,409, and there was a net 
change in fund balance of $539,574, which accounted for an end of year fund balance of $9,805,983. 
This represents a 6% increase in the General Fund during the course of the fiscal year. 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The financial statements presented in this annual report include the activities of the District using the 
reporting model as prescribed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 
34).  The report consists of three parts – management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic 
financial statements, and required supplementary information, if any.  The basic financial statements also 
include notes that further explain some of the information presented in the financial statements and 
provide more detailed data. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide a broad, longer-term view of the 
District’s activities and finances as a whole and is comprised of the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities. The statement of net position provides information about the financial position of 
the District, including its capital assets and long-term liabilities on the full accrual basis, similar to that 
used by corporations. The statement of activities provides information about all the District’s revenues 
and all of its expenses also on the full accrual basis, with the emphasis on measuring net revenues or 
expenses of the District’s programs. The statement of activities explains in detail the change in net 
position for the year. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements provide detailed information about each of the District’s most significant 
funds, called major funds. The District only has one major fund, a governmental fund, the General Fund. 
The fund financial statements report the District’s operations in more detail than the government-wide 
statements and focus primarily on the short-term activities of the District’s General Fund. The fund 
financial statements measure only current revenues and expenditures and fund balances; they exclude 
capital assets, long-term debt, and other long-term amounts. These statements can provide a more 
nuanced view of finances involved in District activities and the provision of public health services. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements  
 
The basic financial statements also include notes that further explain some of the information presented 
in the financial statements and provide more detailed data. 

2525



Required Supplementary Information 
 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
other supplementary information. All these sections of the audit report, when considered together, will 
provide for a more complete understanding of the activities of the District and its fiscal position from year-
to-year. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 
An analysis of the net position serves as a useful indicator of the District’s finances over time, and as of 
June 30, 2024, the District’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $14,896,852. A significant portion of the net 
position ($4,702,593) reflects net investment in capital assets. Capital assets are used to provide services 
to the District’s residents. The following tables represent summaries of the District’s net position and 
changes in net position for the current and prior years: 
 

Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District Governmental Activities Net Position 
 

2024 2023
ASSETS:
     Current and other assets 9,947,869$              9,560,332$              
     Capital assets 7,621,265                7,198,472                
     Deferred outflows 1,273,581                294,059                   

Total assets and deferred outflows 18,842,715$            17,052,863$            

LIABILITIES:
     Current liabilities 168,802$                 240,630$                 
     Noncurrent liabilities 3,450,765                3,397,391                
     Deferred inflows 326,296                   3,258                       

Total liabilities 3,945,863$              3,641,279$              

NET POSITION:
Invested in capital assets 4,702,593$              4,107,800$              
Unrestricted 10,194,259              9,303,784                

Total net position 14,896,852$            13,411,584$            

 
 

2626



Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District Governmental Activities Changes in Net Position 
 

2024 2023

PROGRAM REVENUE:
Charges for services 21,454$                   7,003$                     

Total Program Revenue 21,454                     7,003                       

EXPENSES:

Mosquito Abatement 3,921,865                4,723,717                
Interest on long-term debt 115,591                   120,242                   
Total Expense 4,037,456                4,843,959                

INCREASE/DECREASE IN NET REVENUE
   BEFORE GENERAL REVENUE (4,016,002)               (4,836,956)               

TOTAL GENERAL REVENUE 5,501,270                4,886,956                

INCREASE/DECREASE IN NET POSITION 1,485,268                50,000                     

BEGINNING NET POSITION 13,411,584              13,361,584              

ENDING NET POSITION 14,896,852$            13,411,584$            

 
 

CAPITAL ASSET  ADMINISTRATION 

The District investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2024, amounted to 
$7,621,265 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, 
improvements and equipment. Additional information on the District capital assets can be found in Note 5 
– Capital Assets. 
 
DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
The District’s long-term debt consists of a capital lease used to finance the acquisition and construction of 
its new headquarters facilities in Parlier and the accrued unfunded liability from its California Public 
Employee Retirement System pension obligation. Additional information on the District’s long-term debt 
can be found in Note 6 – Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District Retirement Plan and Note 7 – Long-
Term Debt. 

2727



ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES 
 
For budgetary purposes, revenues are anticipated at conservative levels (underestimates) and expenses 
are overestimated. The budget for the year ending June 30, 2025, projects a deficit of $1,173,741. Total 
revenue is budgeted at $4,865,259 and total expenses, including capital outlay and debt service, are 
budgeted at $6,039,000. The anticipated deficit is the result of onetime capital outlay expense for planned 
infrastructure improvements for the ongoing solar covered parking project at two District facilities. 
Services, supplies, maintenance and miscellaneous expenditures are budgeted to increase by $59,000. 
Capital outlay and debt service are budgeted to decrease by ($935,000), while total reserves are 
budgeted to decrease by ($247,000). 
 
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances and to 
demonstrate the District’s accountability for the money it receives and public health services it provides. If 
you have any questions about this report or need any additional information, contact the District at (559) 
896-1085. 

2828



CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2024 
 
 

ASSETS
Cash and investments 8,994,759$          
Cash with fiscal agent 558,359               
Receivables:

Accounts 36,601                 
Taxes 19,335                 
Interest 1,831                   
Note 127,545               

Inventory 209,439               
Capital assets, net 7,621,265            

Total assets 17,569,134          

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pension 1,273,581            

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 18,842,715          

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 29,943                 
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 111,943               
Accrued interest payable 26,916                 

Non-Current Liabilities:
Due within one year 710,525               
Due in more than one year 2,740,240            

Total liabilities 3,619,567            

Deferred inflows related to pension 326,296               

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 326,296               

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 4,702,593            
Unrestricted 10,194,259          

Total Net Position 14,896,852$        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

 

2929



CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
 

Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants and Revenue/

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions (Expense)

Primary Government:

Mosquito abatement 3,921,865$    21,454$  -$            -$           (3,900,411)$  
Interest on long-term debt 115,591         -          -              -             (115,591)       

Total Governmental Activities: 4,037,456      21,454    -              -             (4,016,002)    

General Revenues:
   Property taxes 5,081,670     
   Intergovernmental 131,448        
   Investment income 6,803            
   Insurance recoveries and adjustments 15,889          
   Other revenues 265,460        

      Total General Revenues 5,501,270     

Change in Net Position 1,485,268     

Net Position, Beginning of Year 13,411,584   

Net Position, End of Year 14,896,852$ 

Functions/Programs

Program
Revenues

 
 

3030



CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2024 

 
General

Fund
ASSETS

Cash and investments 8,994,759$          
Cash with fiscal agent 558,359               
Receivables:

Accounts 36,601                 
Taxes 19,335                 
Interest 1,831                   
Note 127,545               

Inventory 209,439               

Total assets 9,947,869$          
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 29,943$               
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 111,943               

Total liabilities 141,886               

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable 336,984               
Committed 6,051,000            
Unassigned 3,417,999            

Total fund balance 9,805,983            

Total liabilities and fund balance 9,947,869$          

 
 

3131



CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2024 

 
 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because: 
 
 
 
Total fund balance 9,805,983$    

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current
financial resources; therefore, they are not reported in the
General Fund. 7,621,265      

Deferred outflows of resources reflecting the future consumption
of net position are not financial resources and therefore, are not
reported in the governmental funds:
   Deferred outflows related to pensions 1,273,581      

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds

   Governmental long-term debt payable (2,918,672)     
   Accrued interest payable (26,916)          
   Compensated absences (64,750)          
   Net pension liability (467,343)        
Toal long-term liabilities (3,477,681)     

Deferred inflows of resources reflecting the future acquisition of
net position are not financial resources and therefore, are not
reported in the governmental funds:
Deferred inflows related to pensions (326,296)        

Net position of governmental activities 14,896,852$  
   

3232



CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
GOVERNMENTAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

 
 

REVENUES
Property taxes 5,081,670$          
Intergovernmental revenues 131,448               
Charges for services 21,454                 
Use of money and property 260,134               
Insurance retrospective adjustments 15,889                 
Other 5,326                   

Total revenues 5,515,921            

EXPENDITURES
Salaries and wages 1,820,073            
Employee benefits 964,129               
Supplies and maintenance 385,406               
Motor vehicles 155,791               
Insurance 203,534               
Surveillance and research 40,427                 
GIS & GPS 49,539                 
County service charge 63,019                 
Utilities 67,337                 
Communications 48,125                 
Travel and subsistence 42,894                 
Dues and subscriptions 28,431                 
Office supplies 36,983                 
Uniforms 19,669                 
Legal and accounting 16,386                 
Education and publicity 16,148                 
Capital outlay 737,668               
Debt service

Principal 172,000               
Interest 115,591               

Total expenditures 4,983,150            

Excess of revenues over expenditures 532,771               

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Interest income 6,803                   

Total other financing sources 6,803                   

Net change in fund balance 539,574               

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 9,266,409            

Fund Balance, End of Year 9,805,983$          

 

3333



CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
 
 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because: 
 
Net change in fund balance 539,574$       

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation
exceeded capital outlay in the current period 422,793         

Governmental funds report principal reductions of long-term liabilities 
as expenditures. However, in the government-wide financial 
statements principal reductions of long-term liabilities reduce debt 
and are not included within the statement of activities. This is the 
amount of principal reductions of long-term debt during the period 172,000         

Certain current year revenues in the fund statements did not provide 
current resources in the prior year but were accrued on the 
statement of activities (46,343)          

Compensated absences: In governmental funds, compensated 
absences are measured by the amounts paid during the period. In 
the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by 
the amounts earned. The difference between compensated 
absences paid and those earned was: 225                

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, pension expense is
measured as the change in net pension liability and the amortization
of deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions.
This amount represents the net change in pension related amounts 395,037         

Governmental funds report interest payments on long-term liabilities
as expenditures. However, in the government-wide financial
statements, interest expense on long-term debt is recognized as it is
incurred. This is the difference between the methods of interest
recognition 1,982             

Change in net position of governmental activities 1,485,268$    
 

3434



 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accompanying financial statements are presented in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America for governmental units as prescribed by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) and other authoritative sources. 
 
Reporting Entity 
 
Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District was organized in June 1946, upon the approval of the Board of 
Supervisors of Fresno County. The District was organized to provide mosquito control activities in Fresno 
County and later expanded operations into Kings County. The District has plant locations in Selma, 
Sanger, Caruthers, Reedley, Parlier and Clovis. As the District is a governmental unit, it is exempt from 
federal and California taxes on income. 
 
The accounting and reporting policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles 
applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted accounting principles for local 
governments include those principles prescribed by the Government Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB), the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (in Audits of State and Local 
Governmental Units), and by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (when applicable). 
 
These general purpose financial statements present the District in conformance with GASB Statement 
No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity." Under Statement No. 14, component units are organizations that 
are included in the District's reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial 
relationships with the District. The District has no component units. 
 
Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
changes in net position) report information on all of the activities of the primary government. 
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenue, are 
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges 
for support. The District has no business-type activities. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenue includes 1) charges to customer or applicants who 
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment and 2) grants that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported 
instead as general revenues. 

3535



 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded 
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized 
as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as 
soon as all eligibility requirements are met.  Expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
District revenues are available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current period. 
Expenditures generally are recorded when liabilities are incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, 
debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and 
judgements, are recorded only when payment is due. 
 
The District reports the following major governmental fund: 
 
The General Fund is the District’s only operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenue include charges to customers for goods and services, operating 
grants and contributions and capital grants and contributions. 
 
Budgetary Procedures 
 
The District operates under a budget prepared and approved annually by the Trustees.  The budget is 
prepared on a detailed line-item basis.  Revenues are budgeted by source and expenditures or expenses 
are budgeted by use (salaries and employee benefits, services and supplies, other charges, fixed asset 
acquisitions and contingencies).  Once approved, the Trustees may amend the adopted budget when 
unexpected modifications are required in estimated revenue and expenditures or expenses. 

3636



 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position 
 
Cash and Investments 
 
The District invests its excess cash principally with the Fresno County Treasury. The County pools these 
funds with those of other entities in the County and invests the cash in accordance with California 
Government Codes. Generally, investments with the County are available for withdrawal on demand. 
 
Receivables 
 
Receivables consist primarily of billed, but unpaid amounts, property taxes and interest on funds 
deposited with the County Treasury. 
 
Inventory 
 
Inventory consists of expendable supplies held for consumption and are stated at cost on the first-in, first-
out basis. The value of inventory is fully reserved in an equal amount. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental 
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets 
with an initial cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of five years. All material 
fixed assets are valued at historical cost. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair value on 
the date donated. When an asset is disposed of, cost and related accumulated depreciation is removed 
and any gain or loss arising from its disposal is credited or charged to operations. 
 
The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
asset lives are not capitalized. 
 
Depreciation is recorded by using the straight-line method. The book value of each asset is reduced by 
equal amounts over its estimated useful life as follows: 
 
 Buildings ................................................................. 40 years 
 Building improvements and storage tanks ............. 15 years 
 Machinery and shop equipment ............................. 10 years 
 Office and laboratory furniture and equipment ......... 7 years 
 Vehicles and automotive equipment ........................ 7 years 
 Field equipment ........................................................ 5 years 
 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow 
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District has one type of deferred outflow which qualifies 
for reporting in this category, deferred inflows related to pensions. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred inflows 
of resources. The separate financial element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of 
net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources 
(revenue) until that time. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the 
period that the amounts become available. The District has one type of deferred inflow which qualifies for 
reporting in this category, deferred inflows related to pensions. 
 
 

3737



 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position (Continued) 
 
Pension Plan 
 
The District recognizes a net pension liability, which represents its proportionate share of the excess of 
the total pension liability over the fiduciary net position of the pension reflected in the actuarial report 
provided by the CalPERS Actuarial Office. The net pension liability is measured as of the District’s prior 
fiscal year-end. Changes in the net pension liability are recorded, in the period incurred, as pension 
expense or as deferred inflows of resources or deferred outflows of resources depending on the nature of 
the change. The changes in net pension liability that are recorded as deferred inflows of resources or 
deferred outflows of resources (that arise from changes in actuarial assumptions or other inputs and 
differences between expected or actual experience) are amortized over the weighted average remaining 
service life of all participants in the respective pension plan and are recorded as a component of pension 
expense beginning with the period in which they are incurred. The average remaining service lifetime for 
the June 30, 2023 measurement period is 3.8 years. 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to 
pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions 
from the fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS 
Financial Office. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are 
reported at fair value. CalPERS audited financial statements are publicly available reports that can be 
obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications. 
 
GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within 
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used. 
 

2023

Valuation Date June 30, 2022

Measurement Date June 30, 2023

Measurement Period July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023
 

Projected earnings on pension investments are recognized as a component of pension expense. 
Differences between projected and actual investment earnings are reported as deferred inflows of 
resources or deferred outflows of resources and amortized as a component of pension expense on a 
closed basis over a five-year period beginning with the period in which the difference occurred. Each 
subsequent year will incorporate an additional closed basis five-year period of recognition. 
 

3838



 
NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position (Continued) 
 
Fund Equity 
 
Net position presents the difference between assets and liabilities in the statement of net position. Net 
position invested in capital assets are reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for 
the acquisition or improvement of those assets.  
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance amounts in the following 
classifications: Nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. Nonspendable amounts 
represents inventories, prepaid items and long-term receivables. Restricted amounts have been restricted 
by external bodies. Committed amounts have been restricted by the District’s governing board. Assigned 
amounts represent tentative designations by the District. Unassigned amounts are spendable and are not 
restricted, committed or assigned. 
 
The District will spend the funds restricted for their purpose within those funds first followed by 
assigned funds for their intended purposes prior to spending any unassigned funds. 
 
Net Position 
 
Net position comprises the various net earnings from operating income, nonoperating revenue and 
expense and capital contributions. Net positions are classified in the following three components: 
 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt – This component of net position consists of capital assets, 
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, 
notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvements of those 
assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt 
attributable to the unspent proceeds is not included in the calculation of invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt. Rather, that portion of the debt is included in the same net asset components as the unspent 
proceeds. 
 
Restricted – This component of net position consists of constraints imposed by creditors (such as through 
debt covenants), grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints 
imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  
 
Unrestricted net position – This component of net position consists of net position that do not meet the 
definition of restricted or invested in capital assets, net of related debt.  
 
When expenses are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted components of net 
position are available, the District’s policy is to apply the restricted component of net position first, then 
the unrestricted component of net position as needed. 
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the 
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 
 
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
 
The District established a budget for its governmental fund for the year ended June 30, 2024. The budget 
is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 

3939



 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2024, consist of the following: 
 
Cash on hand 4,975$          
Deposits with financial institutions 128,923        
Deposits with county treasury 8,860,861     

Total 8,994,759$   

 
Bank deposit accounts are insured up to $250,000 per institution by the Federal Depository Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC). All of the District’s cash balances held by financial institutions are fully insured or 
collateralized. 
 
Cash in County Treasury 
 
Within the guidelines of Government Code Section 53601, the District maintains substantially all of its 
cash in the Fresno County Treasury as part of the common investment pool. Assumptions made in 
determining the fair value of the pooled investment portfolios are available from the County Treasurer. 
The County is restricted by Government Code Section 53635 pursuant to Section 53601 to invest in time 
deposits, U.S. government securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer’s 
investment pool, bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, negotiable and non-negotiable certificates of 
deposit, repurchase agreements, and mortgage-backed pass-through securities. 
 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code 
 
The District does not have an investment policy independent of what is allowed under the California 
Government Code. The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the Code. The 
table also identifies certain provisions of the Code that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and 
concentration of credit risk. 
 

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment

Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

Local Agency Bonds 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 years None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base value None
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% None
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
JPA Pools (other investment pools) N/A None None  
 
The Fresno County Treasury Investment Pool Statement of Investment Policy is more stringent than the 
California Government Code. As of June 30, 2024 the Investment Pool portfolio complied with its 
statement of Investment Policy. 

4040



 
NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 
to changes in market interest rates.  
 
As of June 30, 2024, the weighted average maturity of the investments contained in the Fresno County 
Treasury Investment Pool is 2.21 years. 27.8% of the portfolio matures within 12 months, 39.3% matures 
between 1 and 3 years, and 32.9% matures between 3 and 5 years.  
 
Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization. The Fresno County Treasury Investment Pool does not have a rating provided by a 
nationally recognized statistical rating organization. However, the assets of the portfolio held by the pool 
as of June 30, 2024 had an average dollar weighted quality rating of “AA+.” 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
There are no investments in any one issuer that represent 5% or more of total District investments. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The California Government Code does not 
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, 
other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial 
institution secure deposits made by the state or local government units by pledging securities in an 
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the 
governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 
110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions 
to secure District deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the 
secured public deposits. As of June 30, 2024, none of the District’s deposits in excess of FDIC limits were 
held in uncollateralized accounts. 
 
Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in securities through the 
use of mutual funds or government investment pools (such as the Fresno County Treasury Investment 
Pool). 
 
Investment in Fresno County Treasury Investment Pool 
 
The District is a voluntary participant in the Fresno County Treasury Investment Pool that is regulated by 
the California Government Code under the oversight of the Auditor- Controller/Treasurer-Tax Collector of 
Fresno County. The fair value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying 
financial statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the 
Treasury Investment Pool for the entire Treasury Investment Pool portfolio (in relation to the amortized 
cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained 
by the Treasury Investment Pool, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 

4141



 
NOTE 3 – CASH WITH FISCAL AGENT 
 
The District has funds on deposit with Vector Control Joint Powers Authority (VCJPA) and Central 
California Vector Control Joint Powers (CCVCJPA). These funds can be used to pay for future insurance 
premiums or can be withdrawn at the discretion of the District. At June 30, 2024, the District had 
$421,115 and $137,244 on deposit with VCJPA and CCVCJPA, respectively. 
 
NOTE 4 – NOTE RECEIVABLE 
 
The District carried back an installment note in the amount of $160,000 related to the sale of the Reedley 
facility in August, 2021. The agreement provides for monthly payments of $1,697, including interest at 
5%, beginning December 1, 2021 and continuing through November 1, 2026, at which time the remaining 
balance of principal and interest are due. The outstanding balance at June 30, 2024 was $127,545. 
 
NOTE 5 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
The following is a summary of changes in capital assets: 
 

Balance Balance
June 30, 2023 Additions Disposals June 30, 2024

Government Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 423,375$             -$            -$          423,375$        

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings & improvements 7,933,713            506,973      -            8,440,686       
Equipment 347,762               89,324        -            437,086          
Vehicles and trailers 1,584,466            141,371      -            1,725,837       

Total capital assets, being depreciated 9,865,941            737,668      -            10,603,609     

Total accumulated depreciation (3,090,844)           (314,875)     -            (3,405,719)      

Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 6,775,097            422,793      -            7,197,890       

Governmental activities
capital assets, net 7,198,472$          422,793$    -$          7,621,265$     

 
 
Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2024 was $314,875. 
 
 
 

4242



 
NOTE 6 – CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
General Information about the Pension Plan 
 
Plan Description – All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the 
Public Agency Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan (Plan) administered by the California Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).  The Plan consists of individual rate plans (benefit tiers) 
within a safety risk pool (police and fire) and a miscellaneous risk pool (all other.)  Plan assets may be 
used to pay benefits for any employer rate plan of the safety and miscellaneous pools.  Accordingly, rate 
plans within the safety or miscellaneous pools are not separate plans under GASB Statement No. 68.  
Individual employers may sponsor more than one rate plan in the miscellaneous or safety risk pools.  The 
District sponsors two miscellaneous rate plans. Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State 
statute and District resolution.  CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of 
the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be 
found on the CalPERS website. 
 
Benefits Provided – CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living 
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries.  
Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time employment.  Members 
with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 – 52 years with statutorily reduced benefits.  
All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service.  The death benefit is one 
of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death 
Benefit.  The cost-of-living adjustments for the Plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ 
Retirement Law. 
 
The rate plan provisions and benefits in effect as of June 30, 2024, are summarized as follows: 
 

Classic PEPRA

Prior to On or after
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 2.00% 2.00%
Required employee contribution rates 7.00% 6.75%
Required employer contribution rates 8.630% 7.470%  
 
Beginning in fiscal year 2016, CalPERS collects employer contributions for the Plan as a percentage of 
payroll for the normal cost portion as noted in the rates above and as a dollar amount for contributions 
toward the unfunded liability and side fund, if applicable.  The dollar amounts are billed on a monthly 
basis.  The District’s required contribution for the unfunded liability was $447,539 for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2024. 
 
Contributions – Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires 
that the employer rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and 
shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are 
determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the 
estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with 
an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the 
difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. Employer 
contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended. Payments made by the employer to satisfy 
contribution requirements that are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution 
requirements are classified as plan member contributions. 
 
The District’s contributions to the plan for the ended June 30, 2024, were $447,539. 

4343



 
NOTE 6 – CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 
 
As of June 30, 2024, the District reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability of the Plan of $467,343. 
 
The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension 
liability.  The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension 
liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as 
of June 30, 2022, rolled forward to June 30, 2023, using standard update procedures.  The District’s 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of 
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, 
actuarially determined.  The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of 
June 30, 2023 and 2024 was as follows: 
 

Proportion - June 30, 2023 0.00518%
Proportion - June 30, 2024 0.00935%
Change - increase (decrease) 0.00417%  
 

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the District recognized pension expense of $645,771.  As of June 30, 
2024, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Change of assumptions 28,216$                -$                      
Differences between expected and actual experience 23,874                  3,704                    
Differences between projected and actual investment 
earnings 75,667                                              - 
Differences between employer's contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 49,898                                  302,063 
Change in employer's proportion 648,387                                  20,529 
Pension contributions made subsequent to the 
measurement date 447,539                -                            

Total 1,273,581$           326,296$              
 

The $447,539 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in future years. Other 
amounts reported as deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
will be recognized as pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ending
June 30

2025 289,634$        
2026 172,697          
2027 35,244            
2028 2,171              
2029 -                      

Thereafter -                       

4444



 
NOTE 6 – CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2022, actuarial valuations were determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions: 
 
Valuation Date June 30, 2022
Measurement Date June 30, 2023
Actuarial Cost Method Entry- Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 6.90%
Inflation 2.30%
Projected Salary Increase Varies by Entry Age and Service
Investment Rate of Return 6.90%
Mortality Derived using CalPERS' Membership Data for all Funds(1)

Post-retirement benefit increase Contract COLA up to 2.30% unitl Purchasing Power
Proteciton Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power applies

(1) The mortality table was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The rates incorporate Generational Mortality 
to capture ongoing mortality improvement using 80% of Scale MP 2020 published by the Society of Actuaries. For 
more details, please refer to the 2021 experience study report that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.9%. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current 
member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required 
rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected 
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the 
long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. 
 

4545



 
NOTE 6 – CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT RETIREMENT PLAN (Continued) 
 
Discount Rate (Continued) 
 
In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and 
long-term market return expectations as well as the expected PERF cash flows.  Using historical returns 
of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-
term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach.  Using the expected 
nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each 
fund.  The expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived 
at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-
term returns.  The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated 
above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses. 
 
The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows: 
 

Asset Class
New Strategic 

Allocation
Real Return 

Years 1-10 (a,b)

Global - equity -cap-weighted 30.00% 4.54%
Global equity non-cap-weighted 12.00% 3.84%
Private equity 13.00% 7.28%
Treasury 5.00% 0.27%
Mortgage-backed securities 5.00% 0.50%
Investment grade corporates 10.00% 1.56%
High yield 5.00% 2.27%
Emerging market debt 5.00% 2.48%
Private debt 5.00% 3.57%
Real assets 15.00% 3.21%
Leverage -5.00% -0.59%
Total 100.00%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.30% used for this period.
(b) Figures are based on the 2021-22 Asset Liability Management study.  
 
Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
 
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, calculated 
using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate: 
 

Discount Rate -1% 
5.90%

Current Discount Rate 
6.90%

Discount Rate +1% 
7.90%

1,644,678$                    467,343$                       (501,705)$                       
 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
CalPERS financial reports. 
 
Payable to the Pension Plan 
 
The District did not have an outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan. 

4646



 

NOTE 7 – LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
The District generally incurs long-term debt to finance projects or purchase assets which will have useful 
lives equal to or greater than the related debt. 
 
In government fund-types, debt discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the current period.  The 
District’s debt activities are summarized below and discussed in detail thereafter: 
 

Amounts Due in 
Balances Balances Due Within More Than

June 30, 2023 Additions Deletions June 30, 2024 One Year One Year

Capital lease 3,090,672$    -$             172,000$  2,918,672$   178,432$ 2,740,240$ 
Net pension

liability 242,194         467,343    242,194    467,343        467,343   -              
Compensated

absences 64,525           103,057    102,832    64,750          64,750     -              

3,397,391$    570,400$  517,026$  3,450,765$   710,525$ 2,740,240$ 

Long-term debt at June 30, 2024 was comprised of the following individual issues: 
 
Capital Lease – The District entered into a capital lease agreement in April, 2017 to finance the 
construction of its central operating facility. Annual payments of $287,591, including interest at 3.74 
percent, are due on April 1, with the final payment due in 2037.  
 
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the financing as of June 30, 2024, are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Years ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2025 178,432$     109,159$     287,591$     
2026 185,106       102,485       287,591       
2027 192,029       95,562         287,591       
2028 199,211       88,380         287,591       
2029 206,661       80,930         287,591       

2030-2034 1,155,189    282,765       1,437,954    
2035-2037 802,044       60,726         862,770       

2,918,672$  820,007$     3,738,679$  
 

4747



 
NOTE 8 – JOINT POWERS AGREEMENTS 
 
The District participates in two joint powers authorities (JPA’s); the Vector Control Joint Powers Agency 
(VCJPA) and the Central California Vector Control Joint Powers Agency (CCVCJPA). The relationships 
between the District and the two JPA’s are such that neither JPA is a component unit of the District for 
financial reporting purposes. 
 
The District is a member of VCJPA for the purpose of pooling worker’s compensation, general liability, 
auto-physical damage, and property insurance. VCJPA also provides group purchased insurance 
coverage for business travel accident, group fidelity, deadly weapon response, and employee assistance 
program coverage. VCJPA is governed by a board of directors consisting of representatives from member 
districts. The board controls the operations of VCJPA, including selection of management and approval of 
operating budgets, independent of any influence by member district beyond their representation on the 
board. Deposit premiums for the worker’s compensation, general liability, and auto-physical damage 
programs are based on actuarially determined claims costs, including incurred but not reported claims, 
and expenses. Retrospective adjustments for the worker’s compensation and general liability programs 
are made on an annual basis, which can result in additional premium assessments or refunds. 
 
The District received refunds of $15,889 from VCJPA during the year ended June 30, 2024 as a result of 
the retrospective adjustment process. 
 
CCVCJPA arranges for and provides health insurance coverage for its members, all of which are vector 
abatement districts located within the State of California. CCVCJPA is governed by a board of directors 
consisting of representatives from member districts. The board controls the operations of CCVCJPA, 
including selection of management and approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by 
member districts beyond their representation on the board. Each member district pays a premium equal 
to the level of coverage required and shares surpluses and deficits equal to their participation in 
CCVCJPA. 
 
Condensed financial information for the JPA’s for the most recent year available is as follows: 
 

VCJPA CCVCJPA
Total assets 23,332,194$      1,765,720$     
Total liabilities 13,505,753        
Member trust funds 1,739,532       
Net position 9,826,441          26,188            
Total revenues 9,153,252          -                      
Total expenditures 7,950,049          -                      
Net increase in net position 1,203,203$        -$                    

June 30, 2024

 
 

The District’s payments to VCJPA and CCVCJPA for the year ended June 30, 2024 were $203,534 and 
$9,105, respectively. 
 

4848



 
NOTE 9 – FUND BALANCE – NONSPENDABLE AND COMMITTED 
 
The following is an analysis of nonspendable and designated fund balances as of June 30, 2024: 
 

Nonspendable:
Note receivable 127,545$             
Inventory 209,439               

336,984$             
Committed:

General purpose 3,126,000$          
Building acquisition 2,000,000            
Contingencies 175,000               
Special projects 250,000               
Equipment acquisition 500,000               

6,051,000$          

 
NOTE 10 – INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 
 
 Intergovernmental revenue consists of the following: 
 

Redevelopment assessments 103,258$             
Homeowners property tax relief 28,190                 

131,448$             

 
NOTE 11 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Management has reviewed its June 30, 2024 financial statements and evaluated subsequent events 
through November 20, 2024, the date the financial statements were issued. Management is not aware of 
any subsequent events that would require recognition or disclosure in the accompanying financial 
statements. 
 

4949



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY. 
 

5050



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 

 

5151



CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 

 
 

Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

REVENUES
Property taxes 4,369,094$       4,369,094$       5,081,670$         712,576$       
Intergovernmental 109,682            109,682            131,448              21,766           
Charges for services 5,000                5,000                21,454                16,454           
Use of money and property -                        -                        260,134              260,134         
Insurance recoveries and adjustments -                        -                        15,889                15,889           
Other income -                        -                        5,326                  5,326             

Total revenues 4,483,776         4,483,776         5,515,921           1,032,145      

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Salaries and wages 2,070,000         2,070,000         1,820,073           249,927         
Employee benefits 969,000            969,000            964,129              4,871             
Supplies and maintenance 635,000            635,000            385,406              249,594         
Motor vehicles 237,000            237,000            155,791              81,209           
Insurance 208,000            208,000            203,534              4,466             
Surveillance and research 65,000              65,000              40,427                24,573           
GIS & GPS 82,000              82,000              49,539                32,461           
County service charge 63,000              63,000              63,019                (19)                 
Utilities 65,000              65,000              67,337                (2,337)            
Communications 55,000              55,000              48,125                6,875             
Travel and subsistence 84,000              84,000              42,894                41,106           
Dues and subscriptions 32,000              32,000              28,431                3,569             
Office supplies 35,000              35,000              36,983                (1,983)            
Uniforms 32,000              32,000              19,669                12,331           
Legal and accounting 26,000              26,000              16,386                9,614             
Miscellaneous 20,000              20,000              -                          20,000           
Education and publicity 30,000              30,000              16,148                13,852           
Capital outlay 2,175,000         2,175,000         737,668              1,437,332      
Debt service
  Principal 172,000            172,000            172,000              -                     
  Interest 118,000            118,000            115,591              2,409             

Total expenditures 7,173,000         7,173,000         4,983,150           2,189,850      

(2,689,224)        (2,689,224)        532,771              3,221,995      

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Interest income -                    -                    6,803                  (6,803)            

Total other financing sources (uses) -                    -                    6,803                  (6,803)            

Net change in fund balance (2,689,224)$      (2,689,224)$      539,574$            3,215,192$    

Fund balance, beginning of year 9,266,409         9,266,409         9,266,409           -                     

Fund balance, end of year 6,577,185$       6,577,185$       9,805,983$         3,215,192$    

Budgeted Amounts

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
 (under) expenditures

5252



CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
 
 

NOTE 1 – BUDGETARY INFORMATION 
 
An annual nonappropriated budget, which establishes the total spending authority for the General Fund, 
is adopted by the Board of Trustees just prior to the beginning of the District’s fiscal year. The Board of 
Trustees may authorize amendments to the budget during the year as deemed necessary. Budgeted 
amounts are reported as amended. 
 
The budgetary basis of accounting is consistent with generally accepted accounting principles applicable 
to the District’s financial statements. 
 
NOTE 2 – EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS 
 
As of June 30, 2024, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following categories: 
 

Excess
Appropriations Category Expenditures

County service charge 19$              
Utilities 2,337           
Office supplies 1,983           

 

5353



CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
LAST 10 YEARS* 

 
 

Measurement Period 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Proportion of the
net pension liability -0.00006% 0.01028% 0.01299% 0.00807% 0.00847% 0.00923% -0.01612% 0.00518% 0.00935%

Proportionate share
of the net pension
liability (asset) (1,708)$       357,105$     511,957$  303,962$  339,139$  389,622$     (1,163,184)$  242,194$     467,343$     

Covered payroll 1,058,057$  1,076,538$  981,244$  823,946$  886,779$  1,188,828$  1,244,348$   1,361,256$  1,291,580$  

Proportionate share
of the net pension
liability as a 
percentage of
covered payroll -0.16% 33.17% 52.17% 36.89% 38.24% 32.77% -93.48% 17.79% 36.18%

Plan fiduciary net
position as a
percentage of the
total pension liability 100.03% 93.61% 91.68% 95.15% 94.92% 94.50% 115.46% 96.96% 69.80%

Notes to the Schedule:

Changes in Benefit Terms - None

Changes in Assumptions - None

*Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.  Additional years will be displayed as they become available.

5454



CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS – PENSION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
LAST 10 YEARS* 

 
Fiscal Year

Ended 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Actuarially required
contribution
(actuarially
determined)  $      70,420  $      79,607  $    68,767  $    89,502  $  102,849  $    121,751  $    102,905  $    117,950  $    447,539 

Contributions in
relation to the
actuarially
determined
contributions          70,420          79,607      223,328      206,854      218,478        605,453        102,905        117,950        447,539 

Contribution
deficiency
(excess) -$                -$                (154,561)$  (117,352)$  (115,629)$  (483,702)$   -$                -$                -$                

Covered payroll 1,058,057$  1,076,538$  981,244$   823,946$   886,779$   1,188,828$  1,244,348$  1,361,256$  1,291,580$  

Contributions as
a percentage of
covered payroll 6.66% 7.39% 7.01% 10.86% 11.60% 10.24% 8.27% 8.66% 34.65%

* Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years.  Additional years will be displayed as they become available.  

5555



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY. 
 
 

5656



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

5757



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY. 
 
 

5858



 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS  
 

Board of Trustees of the  
Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District 
Parlier, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,  the financial statements of the governmental 
activities and the General Fund of Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District (the District) , as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 
20, 2024.  

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting  
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters  
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

 
 

5959



 
 
Purpose of This Report  
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 

 
Clovis, California 
November 20, 2024 

 

6060



CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 
 
 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified -
  not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No
 

 
 
SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
None reported. 
 
 

6161



CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 
 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
None reported. 

 

6262



Agenda Item 6: Warrant to Inspect and Abate 

Background:  
The District has obtained an area-wide Warrant to Inspect and Abate through the Fresno County 
Superior Court annually since May 2010. The Warrant allows District employees to enter the exterior 
of any property within the District’s jurisdiction when the District has reasonable cause for purposes 
of inspecting and treating for mosquitoes capable of transmitting mosquito-borne disease.  
 
Warrants have been issued on a single-year basis; the most current commenced on February 23, 
2024, and extended through November 30, 2024; it is enclosed. It sets the parameters for its use, and 
it allows the District to access properties where the District has been unable to receive consent or 
cooperation from the property owner to inspect and/or treat for mosquito breeding. A warrant is often 
used for vacant or foreclosed properties, and on occasion, the District has been assisted by law 
enforcement when deemed necessary. Most inspections involve unmaintained swimming pools, 
which can constitute severe public nuisances for entire neighborhoods. 
 
At the end of the warrant's term, the District files a Warrant Return listing where and when the 
Warrant was used during the year. The District is currently compiling its use records to submit to the 
Fresno County Superior Court on warrant use. It is necessary to reapply for a Warrant each year. The 
District does so by filing an Application for Area Inspection and Abatement Warrant and a 
Memorandum and Authorities in Support of Application for Area Inspection and Abatement 
Warrant. 
 
Action requested:  
It is requested that the Board approve and authorize the District Manager to work with legal 
counsel to prepare and file the necessary documents to apply for and obtain an area-wide Warrant 
to Inspect and Abate for the 2025 mosquito season and authorize District staff to use it. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6363



1 Dale E. Bacigalupi, State Bar # 97197
lLE DLOZANO SMITH

7404 N. Spalding Avenue FEB 23 202k2

9Fresno CA 93720-3370
Telephone: (559) 431-5600

SUPERLQRQQHBT OF CALIFORNIA
6UNIYOFFRESNO

3

LO
ZA

N
O
SM

IT
H

74
04

N
.
Sp

al
di
ng

Av
en

ue
Fr
es
no

,
CA

93
72

0-
33

70
Te
l5

59
-4
31

-5
60

0
Fa
x
55

9-
26

1-
93

66

4 Facsimile: (559) 261-9366 BY DEPUTY

E-mail: dbacigalupi@lozanosmith.com
5

Attorneys for Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District RECEIVED
2/16/2024 12:09 PM
FRESNO COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT

By: A. Hoffman, Deputy

6

7

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF FRESNO9

10

Case NO 24033600709

WARRANT TO INSPECT AND ABATE

In Re:

CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO
ABATEMENT DISTRICT,

Petitioner.

1 1

12

13

14

15

16

INSPECTION AND ABATEMENT17

TO COMPLIANCE AGENTS, OFFICERS, AND/OR EMPLOYEES OF THE CONSOLIDATED
19 MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT ("DISTRICT"), ANY REPRESENTATIVE THEREOF, AND

ANY SHERIFF, POLICEMAN, OR PEACE OFFICER IN THE COUNTY OF FRESNO:

18

20

Proof by Declaration of Jodi J. Holeman of the District, having been made before the above-

entitled Court that there is probable cause t0 believe that all pools, spas, water features, and other water-

23 holding containers (e.g., buckets, pots (with or without plants), pot bases, ornamental ponds, decorative

24 fountains, birdbaths, animal water dishes, bowls, toys, plastic containers, broken appliances, discarded

25 tires, portable pools, cisterns, leaking water supplies, evaporative coolers, gutters, yard drains, drain

26 pipes, and utility company vaults and subsurface structures, among others) on the properties within the

District are potential mosquito breeding sources for vectors of West Nile virus (WN), Saint Louis

21

22

27

28 encephalitis virus (SLE), Western equine encephalomyelitis virus (WEE), Dengue (DEN), Chikungunya

WARRANT TO INSPECT AND ABATE

6464



LO
ZA

N
O
SM

IT
H

74
04

N
.
Sp

al
di
ng

Av
en

ue
Fr
es
no

,
CA

93
72

0-
33

70
Te
l5

59
-4
31

-5
60

0
Fa
x
55

9-
26

1-
93

66
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N

r-
t

r-
A

r-
x

r-
A

r-
x

p-
A

r-
x

p-
a

p-
A

p-
A

00
fl

O
N

U
I

h
D
J

[\
J

r-
'

O
\O

00
N

O
\

U
]

-P
b)

N
'-'

O

virus (CHIK), Zika virus, and other mosquito-borne diseases and must be inspected and treated and that

2 the risk of public health danger is imminent and will last through November 30, 2024, the Court issues

the Warrant to Inspect and Abate as herein contained. By this reference, the Declaration of Jodi J.

Holeman, which accompanies this warrant, is incorporated herein as if stated in full herein.

The District's jurisdiction includes the incorporated areas of the following municipalities:

6 Clovis, Fowler, Kingsburg, Orange Cove, Parlier, Reedley, Sanger, Selma and a portion of the City of

7 Fresno, and the Communities of Caruthers, Del Rey, Friant, Laton, Raisin City and Riverdale, all within

Fresno County (collectively hereinafter, the "District's Jurisdiction").

This warrant is an area-warrant, authorizing the District to enter all properties within the

District's Jurisdiction for purposes of inspecting and abating health and safety conditions described

more fully in the Declaration of Jodi J. Holeman. Area warrants of this type were upheld in the case of

Camara v. Municzpal Court of San Francisco (1967) 387 U. S. 523. As the United States Supreme

Court recognized in that case, when health and safety issues arise, an agency's need "to conduct an area

inspection is unavoidably based on its appraisal of conditions in the area as a whole, not on its

knowledge of conditions in each particular building. (Id. at 536.) For this reason, the Court further

noted that area warrants have historically been used to prevent epidemics and are therefore of

"indispensable importance to the maintenance of community heath." (Id. at 537.)

THE MANAGEMENT AND STAFF OF THE CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO

ABATEMENT DISTRICT ARE THEREFORE COMMANDED AND AUTHORIZED:

Commencing on March 1, 2024, or as soon thereafter as practicable, and for a period extended

through and including November 30, 2024, to enter the exterior of any property in the District's

Jurisdiction when the District has reasonable cause to believe that said property contains a pool, spa,

water feature, other water-holding container, or any residential mosquito breeding source or mosquito

harborage. You may enter the exterior area of these properties for the purpose of inspecting for the

presence of immature or adult stages ofmosquitoes, including eggs, larvae or pupae, that are potentially

capable of transmitting West Nile virus, Saint Louis encephalitis virus, Western equine

encephalomyelitis virus, Dengue, Chikungunya virus, Zika virus, and other mosquito-borne diseases

1

5

9

once they become adults. Once it is determined by you that mosquito breeding or harborage is

WARRANT TO INSPECT AND ABATE -2_

6565



LO
ZA

N
O
SM

IT
H

74
04

N
.
Sp

al
di
ng

Av
en

ue
Fr
es
no

,
CA

93
72

0-
33

70
Te
l5

59
-4
31

-5
60

0
Fa
x
55

9-
26

l-9
36

6

l occurring, you may identify the various mosquito stages that are present and utilize insecticides,

2 mosquitofish, source elimination methods, and any and all other authorized control measures. A peace

officer may use reasonable force to enter a property to be inspected.

Prior to entering each said property, you shall knock on the front door of the property and request

voluntary consent to enter the property. If you do not receive consent for any reason, you may

6 immediately enter the exterior of the property to conduct the inspection, testing, evaluation and

treatment. You may use minimal reasonable force to enter an area (e.g., opening, unlocking, or

8 otherwise entering into areas behind locked fences and gates) of any property within the District's

9 Jurisdiction if you have reasonable cause to believe that said area contains a pool, spa, water feature,

10 other water-holding container or any residential mosquito breeding source, or that harbors mosquitoes.

Upon identification of mosquitoes that are potentially capable of transmitting West Nile virus,

Saint Louis encephalitis virus, Western equine encephalomyelitis virus, Dengue, Chikungunya, Zika

13 virus, or other mosquito-borne diseases, once-they become adults, you may take any and all necessary

14 actions to inspect, evaluate, test, treat, remediate, and abate such conditions consistent with applicable

15 Federal, State and local regulations.

This warrant may only be executed between the hours of6:30 a.m. and 6:30 p.m. each day it is in

17 effect.

You shall file a return with this Court by December 30, 2024, which sets forth for the Couit

3

4

7

1 1

19 proof that your actions under this Inspection and Abatement Warrant were consistent with the terms and

20 conditions of the Warrant.

Ju e f he\§.up/erior Court

ND-l9l 1-01-PLD-4889-7606-9541.DOC

WARRANT TO INSPECT AND ABATE ~3-

12

16

18

21

24

25

26

27

28

22

23 Dated:

6666



Agenda Item 7: Ethics and Supervisor Training Requirements 

 
Background: 
Trustees are required to complete training under AB 1825 and AB 1234 to ensure compliance with 
legal and ethical standards. AB 1825 mandates sexual harassment prevention training for 
supervisory personnel every two years, while AB 1234 requires ethics training for local officials to 
promote transparency, accountability, and integrity in public service. These trainings are essential 
for maintaining a well-informed and responsible governance structure. The Board will discuss 
options for training requirements.  
 

  AB1825 AB1234 

  Training Training 

Trustee Name 
Appointing 
Agency Due Due 

Tok Fukuda Kingsburg 12/2024 05/2025 
Leonard Hammer Fowler 03/2025 04/2025 
Abe Isaak Reedley 03/2025 03/2025 
Charles Lockhart Orange Cove 03/2025 04/2025 
Mary Anne Hill County 12/2024 04/2025 
Michelle Lopez Parlier 11/2025 11/2025 
Ward Scheitrum Fresno 1/2025 07/2026 
Charles Smith Selma 05/2026 05/2026 
Karen Steinhauer Sanger 1/2026 01/2025 
Bruce Taylor County 01/2026 02/2026 
Jennifer Willems Clovis 12/2024 02/2025 
 
 
 
 
Action Requested:  
No action is required. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6767



Agenda Item 8: Resolution 06-2024 Termination of CCVCJPA 

Background: 
In 1988, the District became a member of the Central California Vector Control Joint Powers 
Agency (CCVCJPA) to access insurance benefits, including health insurance and other programs 
as needed. However, the CCVCJPA no longer provides these benefits to its members. Maintaining 
the CCVCJPA now imposes a burden without offering any benefit to the District. Therefore, 
dissolving the CCVCJPA is in the best interests of all its members.  

Under Article XXI of the JPA Agreement, the process to dissolve the CCVCJPA begins when the 
CCVCJPA Board receives Resolutions from at least 2/3 of the original JPA member District 
Boards that remain in the JPA requesting the dissolution of the CCVCJPA. The Consolidated 
Mosquito Abatement District is not an original member; however, legal counsel suggested that 
other CCVCJPA districts that are not original members can also adopt a resolution requesting the 
dissolution.  

Action Requested:  
The Board will be asked to approve Resolution 06-2024  

6868



RESOLUTION NO. 06-2024 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT 

ANNOUNCING ITS DETERMINATION AND DESIRE TO DISSOLVE 
AND TERMINATE THE CENTRAL CALIFORNIA VECTOR CONTROL 

JOINT POWERS AGENCY (“CCVCJPA”) 
 

WHEREAS, in 1988, the Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District (the “District”) 
became a member of the CCVCJPA and signatory of the Joint Powers Agreement (the “JPA 
Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the CCVCJPA served the District and other member Districts for many 

years and achieved the purposes of the JPA Agreement by providing those services described in 
the JPA Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, in recent years the CCVCJPA has become inactive and no longer provides 

the services that are described in the JPA Agreement; and  
 
WHEREAS, it now appears that the time has come to dissolve the CCVCJPA; and  
 
WHEREAS, Article XXI of the JPA Agreement provides for the dissolution process of 

the CCVCJPA to commence when the CCVCJPA receives Resolutions of 2/3 of the original 
member Districts requesting such dissolution. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the 
Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District, as follows: 
 

1. The Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District hereby requests the Board of 
Directors of the CCVCJPA to commence the process to dissolve the CCVCJPA in the manner 
described in Article XXI of the JPA Agreement. 

 
2. The District Manager is directed to deliver this Resolution to the Board of 

Directors of the CCVCJPA at the next meeting of the CCVCJPA and to cooperate with the 
CCVCJPA Board of Directors in the dissolution process. 
 

The foregoing Resolution was approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the Board of 
Trustees of the Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District held on the 16th day of December, 
2024, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:   
NOES:    
ABSTAINED:   
ABSENT:      ________________________________ 

       Board of Trustees 
       Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Board of Trustees 
       Consolidated Mosquito Abatement District 

6969



 

Agenda Item 9: Transmission Replacement 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7070



7171


	12_2024 Agenda
	CONSOLIDATED MOSQUITO ABATEMENT DISTRICT
	13151 E. Industrial Dr., Parlier, CA 93648
	559-896-1085 | www.mosquitobuzz.net
	Board of Trustees Meeting
	Monday, December 16, 2024
	1:00PM

	AGENDA

	11_2024 Minutes
	11_2024 Special Meeting Minutes
	November 2024 Payroll Report
	November 2024 Maintenance and Operations
	November 2024 Spent to Date
	December 2024 Credit Card Transactions
	December 2024 AGENDA ITEMS
	Draft Audit CMAD 06302024 updated
	December 2024 AGENDA ITEMS
	2024 Inspection and Abatement Warrant 4895-6315-7157 1
	December 2024 AGENDA ITEMS
	Resolution to Dissolve and Terminate CCVCJPA 4866-1869-6185 1
	December 2024 AGENDA ITEMS
	TransmissionQuote



